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CITY AND COUNTY OF DENVER 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION AND INFRASTRUCTURE 

 

VIBRANT DENVER GO BOND 

ON-CALL PROGRAM MANAGEMENT SERVICES RFQ 

 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 
OCTOBER 29, 2025 

 

Firms are hereby instructed that the RFQ documents are modified, corrected, supplemented and/or superseded for the 

above-mentioned project as hereinafter described: 

 

QUESTIONS/ANSWERS 

 

Q1. Can you tell us if and how DOTI Interagency Implementation employees will be utilized on the individual 

projects?  

A1. The City’s organizational structure does not impact this procurement. 

 

Q2. Please confirm the cover letter, affirmative statement, and certificate of good standing does not count 

towards the overall page limit. 

A2. Correct, Tab 1 (Letter of Transmittal and Required Documents) does not count towards the overall 

page limit. 

 

Q3.  The RFQ references “organizational conflicts of interest” and the City’s discretion to determine when such 

conflicts may preclude participation in related projects. For MWBE firms that may both (a) participate on 

the Program Management On-Call team, and (b) have relevant qualifications to provide design or other 

professional services for projects delivered under the Vibrant Denver GO Bond, would participation on the 

Program Management On-Call contract prevent them from pursuing design work on specific bond projects? 

If so, is there a defined process or exception that would allow an MWBE firm to perform both program 

management and project-specific design work, particularly given the City’s stated commitment to 

promoting MWBE participation? 

A3.  Conflict questions are by their nature highly fact specific. Generally, the City focuses on Prime 

Contractors when evaluating potential conflicts but conflicts are not exclusively limited to Prime 

Contractors. Typically, early technical work such as survey work will not prevent a Contractor from 

proposing on or being part of a team for future work. However, if a Contractor of any level has access 

to non-public information that potentially gives an unfair advantage that would be considered a 

conflict. The City will evaluate conflicts on a project-by-project basis and cannot guarantee that 

participation in the Program Management contract would or would not present a conflict for future 

work on the Bond. MWBE certification does not impact this evaluation. 

 

Q4.  We are interested in pursuing this RFP as a subconsultant but are currently partnered on several projects 

that are up for funding through the Denver Vibrant Bond list, some of which are actively in design. We 

would like to confirm that our involvement in current projects does not preclude us from partnering for the 

Program Management scope of work. 

A4.  Conflict questions are by their nature highly fact specific. Generally, the City focuses on Prime 

Contractors when evaluating potential conflicts but conflicts are not exclusively limited to Prime 

Contractors. Typically, early technical work such as survey work will not prevent a Contractor from 

proposing on or being part of a team for future work. However, if a Contractor of any level has access 

to non-public information that potentially gives an unfair advantage that would be considered a 
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conflict. The City would need to evaluate this particular conflict individually. Please submit a detailed 

description to DOTI.Procurement@denvergov.org for evaluation and determination.  

 

Q5. As a follow up question, would involvement in the Program Management scope of work preclude us from 

pursuing future work through the Denver Vibrant Bond project list? 

A5. Conflict questions are by their nature highly fact specific. Generally, the City focuses on Prime 

Contractors when evaluating potential conflicts but conflicts are not exclusively limited to Prime 

Contractors. Typically, early technical work such as survey work will not prevent a Contractor from 

proposing on or being part of a team for future work. However, if a Contractor of any level has access 

to non-public information that potentially gives an unfair advantage that would be considered a 

conflict. The City will evaluate conflicts on a project-by-project basis and cannot guarantee that 

participation in the Program Management contract would or would not present a conflict for future 

work on the Bond. 

 

Q6. The proposal states no hyperlinks. Are bookmarks within the internal PDF permitted since they won't 

redirect to external sources? 

A6. Bookmarks within the document are acceptable. No link redirecting outside of the document will be 

acceptable.  

 

Q7. How much of Tab 1 counts towards the page restrictions? It seems like the Affirmative Statement and the 

Certificate of Good Standing should be exempted as required forms, but does that logic extend to the Cover 

Letter? 

A7. Please refer to A2. 

 

Q8. Please confirm whether the City intends to award a single contract for program management services, or if 

there is a possibility that multiple contracts may be awarded under this RFQ. 

A8. The City intends to award a single contract for the Program Management Services.  

 

Q9. The RFQ identifies a contract period of 7 years. The sample agreement in Attachment 5, Section 3 identifies 

that rates can be modified only by written amendment executed in the same manner as the agreement.  For 

consultants to appropriately account for escalation, can the City confirm whether the rate sheets provided 

in Envelope 2 shall encompass 7 years of the contract time, or if there will be rate modifications at intervals 

within the 7-year contract time, such as yearly with each task order 

A9. Rate structures should be provided for the first 3 years. A rate change will be considered based upon 

a mutually agreeable industry index one time in year 4. The Contract Language will be updated to 

reflect this.    

 

Q10. Regarding a prime's subconsultants potential preclusion from future, individual Vibrant Denver Bond 

projects, does the preclusion tie to specific scope of work elements or dependent on if the subconsultant 

has an MWBE certification?  

A10. Please refer to A3. 

 

Q11. The RFQ requests a description of any Program/Project claims, dispute proceedings, or assessment of 

liquidated damages. Could the City please clarify whether this information should be provided for each 

Program/Project example submitted, or as a single overall summary for the firm? 

A11. This information is intended to be provided for the firm, not just for referenced Programs or 

Projects.  

 

Q12. The RFQ requests Program/Project examples. Could the City please clarify whether individual project 

examples are acceptable, or if the examples must represent broader programmatic initiatives?   
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A12. This is a Program Management procurement; examples of the firm providing Program Management 

services will have more consideration. 

 

Q13. Does the City require a rate sheet for the current year only, separate rate sheets for each year of the potential 

contract term, or a single rate sheet representing consolidated rates over the entire duration of the contract? 

A13. Please refer to A9. 

 

Q14. For the “percentage of contribution of total effort,” should this percentage reflect only the key personnel 

listed, or include all additional staff identified in the proposal? 

A14. This should include Key Personnel as well as Key Subconsultants as requested in the RFQ.  

 

Q15. Could you please clarify whether the affirmative statement and the Certificate of Good Standing are 

included in the overall page count limit for the submission? 

A15. Please refer to A2. 

 

 


